

JOINT COORDINATING COMMITTEE, INC. BY-LAWS

(Approved by the Joint Coordinating Committee on November 29, 2005, and ratified by the MSP on November 30, 2005, and the FSU on December 12, 2005.

ARTICLE I: PURPOSES

- 1.1 The purpose of the Joint Coordinating Committee, Inc. is to associate the Massachusetts Society of Professors, Inc. (MSP) and the Faculty Staff Union, Inc. (FSU), in a unit wide local called the Joint Coordinating Committee, Inc. (JCC). The term "chapter" as used herein shall mean the MSP or the FSU.
- 1.2 The purpose of the JCC shall be:
 - (a) to represent the interests of the membership before the National Education Association (NEA), the Massachusetts Teachers Association (MTA), and the appropriate political institutions in the Commonwealth and elsewhere;
 - (b) to bargain, submit for ratification, and maintain a collective bargaining agreement on behalf of the membership; and
 - (c) to further the interests of the membership by striving to maintain and improve public higher education in the Commonwealth and the University of Massachusetts in particular.
 - (d) The Joint Coordinating Committee, Inc. is created for these purposes and to engage in any other related activities as are consistent with the law.
- 1.3 These By-Laws shall be in conformity with the constitutions and by-laws of the MTA and the NEA.
- 1.4 Any person who is a member of the bargaining unit, as set forth in the collective bargaining agreement between the Local and the Employer, shall be eligible for membership in the MSP/FSU.

ARTICLE II: GOVERNANCE

- 2.1 The executive governing body of the Local shall be the Joint Coordinating Committee (JCC). The functions of the JCC are:
 - (a) to formulate and implement the policies and programs of the Local, consonant with the purpose as set forth in Section 1.2; and to consider and act upon other matters that concern both chapters;
 - (b) to elect the Executive Officers of the JCC;
 - (c) to select a bargaining team for the purposes of planning and negotiating a collective bargaining agreement, to approve items for contract negotiation, to instruct and to advise the bargaining team during the collective bargaining process, to present the negotiated contract to the members of the bargaining unit in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 150E and the regulations of the Massachusetts Labor Relations Commission, and to recommend the agreement's acceptance or

rejection.

(d) to determine whether to submit grievances to outside arbitration under the collective bargaining agreement.

2.2 Membership and officers of the JCC:

(a) Membership of the JCC shall consist of the president and the chair of the grievance committee of each chapter and such other officers and members of the executive governing body of each chapter as will provide seven (7) members from the MSP and four (4) from the FSU. The chapters shall separately determine the mode of selection and recall and the terms of office of their respective members.

(b) No later than June 30 in alternate years, the JCC shall elect to two-year terms from the membership of the JCC, by majority vote, a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary/Clerk, and a Treasurer. In other years, the JCC shall fill any vacancies by electing officers from the membership of the JCC to complete unexpired terms.

(c) At least two officers shall be members of the MSP and at least one shall be a member of the FSU.

(d) An officer may be removed from office by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting at a duly called meeting of the JCC. A motion to recall shall be a Special Order of the Agenda of the meeting at which it is to be submitted and acted upon. The JCC shall designate an appropriate chair to preside during consideration of the recall motion.

(e) All members of the JCC who are not Officers shall constitute the Board of Directors.

2.3 Duties of the Officers:

(a) The President shall prepare the agenda of the JCC, preside at meetings of the JCC, and represent the interests of the Local in accordance with Section 1.2.

(b) The Vice-President shall assist the President and assume the President's functions when the President is unable to perform such duties.

(c) The Secretary/Clerk shall take and distribute the minutes of the JCC.

(d) The Treasurer shall prepare a budget and shall make all disbursements for the JCC.

2.4 Finances of the JCC:

(a) The JCC shall approve annually, no later than June 30, a budget for carrying out the functions specified in the Articles of Association.

(b) Expenditures by the JCC, including costs of arbitration, shall be defrayed as necessary by assessing each chapter an amount proportionate to the number of dues-paying members and agency fee payers in each chapter as certified by the Treasurer, based on the submission by each chapter, no later than May 1 of a membership year, of a list of its bargaining unit members by category (dues-paying members, agency fee payers, conscientious objectors).

(c) Payment of chapter assessments to the JCC shall be the sole responsibility of each chapter. Notwithstanding the foregoing provision, in the event one chapter cannot otherwise meet necessary expenses, the JCC may vote to assess the other chapter for

more than its representative share of the cost of operating the JCC or of financing arbitrations.

(d) Each chapter shall be free to determine the dues structure for the members of the bargaining unit on each campus and to collect dues or the equivalent thereof as each chapter sees fit, so long as such arrangements meet the requirements of M.G.L. Chapter 150E and the regulations of the Massachusetts Labor Relations Commission and are approved by the JCC.

(e) The JCC, through the Treasurer, shall be responsible for compliance with Article IX, Section 4, of the By-Laws of the MTA, as amended from time to time.

(f) The JCC, through the Treasurer, shall assure Local compliance with the Agency Fee Rebate Procedure promulgated by the Local in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 150E.

(g) The JCC, through the Treasurer, shall certify the annual dues of the Local to the Employer on an annual basis.

(h) The funds of the JCC may be expended only in matters consistent with the objectives of the JCC. The Treasurer shall deposit the JCC's funds in the name of the Joint Coordinating Committee, Inc., in any appropriate financial institution authorized to do banking and/or investment business in Massachusetts.

2.5 Duties of the Board of Directors:

(a) The Board of Directors, together with the Officers, shall constitute the Executive Committee of the JCC.

2.6 Meetings of the JCC:

(a) The JCC shall meet annually each academic year during the month of November following five working days' written notice.

(b) Special sessions may be called by the President or by the Directors, or shall be called by the Secretary/Clerk, or in the case of the death, absence, incapacity or refusal of the Secretary/Clerk, by any other officer, upon the written application of members representing at least ten percent of the smallest quorum of members required for a vote upon any matter at the annual meeting.

(c) Six (6) members present at a JCC meeting shall constitute a quorum, provided at least two members are present from each chapter.

(d) The agenda for a regularly scheduled JCC meeting shall be distributed to all members of the JCC at least one week in advance of the meeting.

ARTICLE III: CONSCIENTIOUS OBJECTOR PROCEDURE

3.1 Each chapter shall establish procedures for notifying bargaining unit members of the requirements of Article VII, Agency Fee, of the collective bargaining agreement and their rights thereunder and under this procedure.

3.2 Bargaining unit members who, because of bona fide religious convictions or bona fide moral and conscientious objections, choose not to become members of the Local, and who do not wish to pay an agency fee in lieu of union dues, must apply for a waiver of the agency fee as specified in Section 3.3 below.

3.3 Application procedures:

(a) To qualify for a waiver of the agency fee, a bargaining unit member shall make application to a conscientious objector committee, which shall be created by each chapter. Such application shall be made only once during the term of a collective bargaining agreement. No application will be accepted from a bargaining unit member who has an action concerning payment or non-payment of agency fee pending before any public agency or court.

(b) Upon filing the application, the applicant shall establish, jointly with the chapter treasurer, an escrow account into which the applicant will pay the equivalent of the agency fee due and payable. In the event of a favorable decision on the waiver, such payment(s) shall be submitted to a campus student scholarship fund. With the consent of the chapter conscientious objector committee, payments may be designated for a specific campus scholarship fund. In the event of a final unfavorable decision, such payment(s) will be returned to the applicant and the applicable agency fee will be due and payable.

3.4 Decision procedure:

(a) Each conscientious objector committee shall grant, in timely fashion, such applications for waivers as in its judgment appear to be based on bona fide religious or moral and conscientious convictions, which shall be understood to mean beliefs that are integral to a person's character or fundamental principles of a person's life. Grounds for approval shall not include political or ideological disapproval of a campus union or opposition to use by the Union of dues or agency fees.

(b) Upon rendering its decision, the conscientious objector committee shall provide the applicant an opportunity to be heard in person or to amend the waiver application. The committee shall have the option, after hearing any new information, of reconsidering its initial decision.

3.5 Appeal procedure:

(a) An applicant may appeal a final decision of the conscientious objector committee to an appeals committee, provided that such appeal is made no later than a month after receipt of the decision.

(b) The appeals committee on each campus shall be composed of the chapter president or a designee, a conscientious objector in good standing selected in rotation from a panel of those who have volunteered to serve in this capacity, and a third person to be named by the other two committee members. Should they fail to agree on such a person, an appropriate campus official (such as an ombudsman or affirmative action officer) shall be asked to designate a person to serve on the appeals committee.

(c) The appeals committee may order reconsideration or overrule an action of the conscientious objector committee if the applicant is able to demonstrate to the appeals committee's satisfaction a procedural error or a misapplication of the specified standards. Decisions of the appeals committee shall be by majority vote.

3.6 The waiver of agency fee will remain in effect only so long as the bargaining unit

member continues to make timely contributions to the appropriate scholarship fund on the annual schedule prescribed for agency fee payments. Upon failure to make timely contributions, the conscientious objector committee may revoke the bargaining unit member's conscientious objector status and the applicable agency fee becomes due and payable. Such revocation shall not be subject to appeal.

ARTICLE IV: AMENDMENT

4.1 These Articles of Association may be amended from time to time by a two-thirds vote of JCC members present and voting and the concurrence of the executive governing bodies of each chapter. This is the only procedure for amending these By-Laws.